BETREEED
—E-RE—LEERE
Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund Report 2016/17

FAOEBE
CARING

People Together

KETRE
EMSD



v

BOREBEWE TRIRT - Baskhs - AR
MEANEFEEE -

To improve the quality of life for our community
through continuous enhancement of our electrical
and mechanical engineering services.
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Providing quality engineering solutions to satisfy our
customers' needs.
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Developing a competent workforce and maintaining a

harmonious environment.
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Keeping pace with technology development and
process improvement for service enhancement.
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We uphold honesty and integrity to embrace an
ethical culture.
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We provide safe, reliable, efficient, cost-effective and

quality services.
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We care for our staff, customers, community and the

environment.

RMEEFPHNEETE  HMBOB - BRE
HIRRFR  URREFPHEEMIEE -

We focus on the needs of our customers and provide
engineering solutions in a proactive and responsible
manner to win their trust and support.
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We do what we promise.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Among the many highlights during the year, EMSTF secured five-year contracts
from the Hospital Authority (HA) via open tender. The new contracts cover a wide
scope of operation and maintenance (O&M) services for electrical and mechanical
(E&M) and building services systems and various biomedical equipment at HA
hospitals and clinics, underscoring our competitiveness in the market and the
strength of our partnership with HA spanning two decades. Meanwhile, both our
Customer Opinion Survey and Staff Satisfaction Survey returned record high
satisfaction scores in 2016. This is testimony to the good work of the EMSTF team in
serving both key stakeholder groups, satisfying the needs of our clients while

engaging effectively with our fellow staff members.

On the technology front, our Strategic Business Units have continued to help our
client departments deploy the integrated Building Management System and other
technologies to enhance operational efficiency, energy saving and overall system
performance. The good results achieved in these projects have paved the way for
more widespread deployment of such technology solutions. These are just some
examples of our team’s commitment, details of which are set out in the ensuing

chapters.

FROM “GOOD” TO “BETTER”

With the successful completion of the celebrations of EMSTF's 20th anniversary in
2016/17, it became ever more apparent that our mission is not just to grow EMSTF,
but also to help Hong Kong's E&M facilities progress from “good” to “better”. Many
of the city's E&M assets and facilities were installed in the 1970s and 1980s when
the economy took off. Their timely upgrading or replacement is now becoming
critical if we are to prevent ageing assets from undermining the city's efficiency and
reliability.

UPGRADING GOVERNMENT’S E&M
ASSETS

Our challenge is two-fold: to replace old assets in a timely manner and to digitise
mid-life assets in time using the latest technologies. Even with the best of
intentions, EMSTF cannot do this alone. We need to secure buy-in from our clients
who own the E&M assets, and then align their needs with our manpower and
technological capabilities. To get optimal results, our clients may also have to
overhaul their in-house E&M system operations and procedures. For many clients,

this is likely to amount to a major exercise in change management.

That said, as a government department with unique operational flexibility, EMSTF is
well suited to conducting technologically advanced pilot projects, even going so
far as to invest in our own research and development (R&D) work. This lets us lead
by example to persuade our clients into upgrading their E&M assets and to offer

assistance to them in this regard.
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FACILITATING THE TRADE

EMSTF's pioneering role in asset upgrading need not be confined to the public
sector. Indeed, one of EMSTF's corporate strategies is to become a trade model for
the E&M industry in Hong Kong. Accordingly, we have formed the Hong Kong
Electrical and Mechanical Trade Promotion Working Group with 18 related E&M
organisations to spearhead promotional and recruitment activities. The group’s aim
is to impress upon young people and their parents the bright prospects of the trade
and to boost its professional image so as to attract new blood. With consistent
efforts, we believe the E&M trade can attract new talents and help provide a steady
supply of quality manpower to fulfil the trade’s needs.

We also see room for improvement in our E&M trade’s technical and technological
proficiency. In this regard, we have been working closely with institutions such as
the Vocational Training Council on various promotion and training programmes to
raise young practitioners’ technical skills and enrich their technological knowledge.

At the time of writing, two of our technician trainees are set to compete in the
WorldSkills Competition in Abu Dhabi in October. One has won a gold medal in the
Hong Kong WorldSkills Competition 2017. The other has already represented Hong
Kong in the Global Skills Challenge held in Australia in July, and will go to Abu Dhabi
to compete in the above-mentioned WorldSkills Competition. The experience
gained from these international contests would better equip them for the
challenges ahead. Their outstanding performance shows that our young E&M
technicians can achieve world-class E&M standards in Hong Kong by working smart.

ENHANCING OPERATION AND
MAINTENANCE

Our efforts to encourage client departments to upgrade their E&M assets are paying
dividends, with the proactive move by HA to replace conventional chillers at their
major hospitals with more energy-efficient oil-free chillers being one of the
achievements. Coupled with the digitisation and data analytic functions which
come with the new systems, the replacement will inevitably lead to an overhaul of
the day-to-day O&M practices for our clients as well, in particular the shift in focus
from fault prevention to continuous performance optimisation. We must take the
lead and help our clients adapt to the necessary change in skills and mindset in the
process.

As an agile organisation, we would continue to invest in our own R&D in system
performance optimisation in the future. This would also help take Hong Kong's
excellent O&M practices to the next level.
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NEW GOAL AT 70

The year 2018 marks the 70th anniversary of the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department, presenting a good opportunity for us to reflect on the past and plan
ahead. As the service provider and facilitator of E&M engineering services in the
public sector, EMSTF will remain committed and steadfast in fulfilling our mission to
enhance the city’s E&M assets. Hong Kong has enjoyed great economic success
since the 1970s and 1980s. Many are happy to rest on their laurels and some E&M
trade practitioners may also be no exception. We must therefore stay vigilant so as
not to become complacent about our achievements and should always strive for
breakthroughs.

EMSTF will continue to fully utilise its manpower, technology and unique
operational flexibility to help the Government upgrade its E&M assets. Leading by
example, we can also help the E&M trade better protect and upgrade their E&M
assets for their clients and stakeholders and keep pace with the times to benefit all.

GRATITUDE AND APPRECIATION

We owe our exceptional accomplishments in the past year to the guidance of the
Executive Board, the leadership of our predecessors, and the strong support from
our clients, policy bureaux and departments, all our staff, contractors, as well as the
trade at large. We hereby express our heartfelt gratitude. We also thank the
Legislative Councillors, opinion leaders, media and the public for their scrutiny and
feedback. We look forward to working with all our stakeholders in the coming year
to make Hong Kong an ever-better place.

Alfred W H Sit
General Manager (Acting), Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
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The year 2016/17 was significant in that it marked the conclusion of our 20th anniversary celebratory
activities, giving us a chance to reflect on EMSTF’s development. It was also the fourth year of our first
five-year plan, and an opportune time to start thinking about our next decade.

The 2016/17 financial results were steady and exceeded our business targets, with total revenue at
HK$6,203 million (2015/16: HKS$5,764 million) and return on revenue at 5.3% (2015/16: 4.8%). We
maintained our slim-profit operating principle to optimise value for clients while sustaining our
continuous development.
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2016/17 HIGHLIGHTS

The year was punctuated by several milestones. The first was successfully securing
our work for the Hospital Authority (HA) via open tender, our first major contracts
from the former Service Level Agreement arrangement, for another five years from
2017/18. The contracts cover operation and maintenance (O&M) services for
electrical and mechanical (E&M), air-conditioning, building services and electronic
systems and various biomedical equipment at HA hospitals and clinics. Though the
tender process and subsequent contract administration pose additional cost
implications, we respect the client’s wish to change the procurement approach.
Indeed, we have maintained strong partnership with HA and shall continue on our
journey of productivity improvement to meet future challenges.

The second milestone in 2016/17 was our work to help clients prepare energy-
saving projects and budget for submission to the Government, with funding
proposals worth about HK$500 million over the next five years. Together with the
forthcoming completion of major infrastructure projects, such as the Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, demand for EMSTF's services is set to increase. This will give
us a golden opportunity not only to help clients achieve 5% energy saving in five
years as required by the Government, but also to expedite technology
transformation that will optimise the performance of clients’ assets, such as air-
conditioning systems, via asset upgrading and the smart use of software and data
for fine control.

The third milestone was our internal “Shine 30+" initiative, which aimed to
encourage the new generation to articulate their vision for EMSTF development in
the coming ten years and beyond. The “Shine 30+" report, prepared by a group of
up-and-coming EMSTF engineers, outlines four organisational characteristics,
namely Innovative, Connected, Agile and Transparent (ICAT) that will be vital to our
organisational development in the next decade. The report has been accepted by
our senior management, and some of the recommendations therein will be

deployed in EMSTF's next five-year plan.
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Review and QOutlook

BUSINESS GROWTH AND HUMAN
RESOURCE BREAKTHROUGHS

The anticipated business growth arising from various energy-saving and new
infrastructure projects, as mentioned above, is set to put pressure on manpower
and our resource utilisation. The good news is that regarding EMSTF's successful bid
to the Government for 42 new civil service posts, all of them were created in
2016/17.

The recruitment of additional civil service staff after years of maintaining the same
establishment has removed one of our operational bottlenecks. The new posts will
help EMSTF mobilise our resources better, though non-civil service contract staff
and contractors will continue to play an important role in our manpower mix.
Meanwhile, the first cohort of 100 technician trainees recruited four years ago,
when our revamped training scheme was launched, graduated in 2016/17. With
new cohorts coming through the system, the scheme will provide a steady stream
of new blood for our frontline team.

These human resource breakthroughs, together with our drive to develop the staff
competence matrix, will help us build staff capacity and retain core and new skills
in-house more effectively, both of which are crucial to EMSTF's development.

FROM O&M TO ENERGY SAVING AND
SYSTEM OPTIMISATION

Our work to help clients better manage and upgrade existing or ageing assets
continued during the year. For example, we drew up a list of E&M assets that have
been in service for 25 years or more and ought to be replaced, so that the
Government may prepare the appropriate funding in advance.

We are also excited about the potential for a complete overhaul of our asset
operating landscape, which is arising from the various energy management projects
that aim to achieve the target of 5% energy saving. Asset replacement is only the
first step. Indeed, with more precise control of assets, such as optimised operational
control of air-conditioning systems, enabled by sensors and data analytics,
additional energy saving and greater reliability for clients are not impossible.
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This calls for a new approach to the operation of air-conditioning and other
systems, including re-training our staff, with the aim not only to save energy but
also to optimise overall system performance. Similar energy management
opportunities can also be leveraged to optimise the performance of electrical,
lighting and lift and escalator systems in government buildings. Our goal is to
implement the new approach, establish a few success cases and then identify the
best practices for the trade so as to benefit all.

REFLECTIONS ON THE PATH OF EMSTF

Thanks to the support of clients, EMSTF's 20th anniversary finale ceremony held in
September 2016 was a great success. The occasion gave us an opportunity to
reflect on the twists and turns of EMSTF's development. Ours is a story of survival
and continuous improvement, following a pattern of growth, consolidation and
adjustment. Since 2012, we have entered a more mature phase where the focus has
been to create public value for our clients and the community.

In terms of the O&M service mindset, we have also come a long way. In the early
days of EMSTF, we used to be content with “guaranteed fixed". Then our focus
shifted from fault rectification to fault prevention, aiming at “guaranteed no
breakdowns” so as to achieve a high availability of plant and equipment for clients.
Then, with advancements in green technologies worldwide, we aimed higher at
"guaranteed satisfied”, with a focus on helping clients save energy. The latest goal is
“guaranteed smart”, making intelligent use of information and communication
technology and Internet of Things technologies to help clients manage E&M assets
through digitisation and optimise system performance.

These shifts have changed EMSTF, and also played themselves out in many other
service organisations. There has been a paradigm shift from traditional O&M to the
wider realm of system performance optimisation.



METREEES -_ZE—REZ—tEHRE EMSTF REPORT 2016/17

2= 15 0] BR B B S
Operation

FeERATEED

EALZIOE - FEFORSTER - BITER KA
HrE A o L0 [Shine 30+ ) & /NEREIRE - A
EZEFNEREBNEE - BARRIEITEE  BED
SRRTEIF-TRLHBH]  [BEEE] R[AS
RAE ] 5 - M E A - #iitR e R B Bl
B/ ERSREEAMFEERRES  WEES
LA E 42 M R IR 1E R ISR E R RN B A0 AT -
KEEETE - TB B FAERRBITMERESE
2 TEM - BADESERIA A RN - MR -
WHRZ BIFEHEMER -

REEREIMEE  RIEFH —RNEBNE
RIEEE - ZLMEZAEMES TRERETHE
REZ= ZE[BLEREZ|MER HRKEAEE
mE - METRAHESATEY  KMBEER X
SRRRNRELSK - AEEBE - /7T M2 [R5
AIMTEBERE]  BMSBE TEBASEAEN
BRI ABR2E - ARAERSE  KRBIFT IR -

AFERE

RERNK 201718 FEMEBETIE ERERIR
ME—EAFTENRR - WARRAFHETRE
BMBETIEARRETER  BRTHAFE - TRE
BERY  FBEPAEIEEE  UERRARPHE
Fﬁﬁw%ﬁmﬁ—k MEEMRE - BEKXAER

BV BT REEEE L - B AEEENS
%Eﬁ’é?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ C MEEERE -

BPMEFAEALF—EAERENER  MEEHR
MBEEMELERRENBNTR - BELFHE D
ki X%ﬂ%iﬁz WA AEBHBEZRNERE
EERAEFSEER - */F SER? 2EESRBUTEE
REHETZERS - 2EWRAENE - REAREFKS
EAE ﬁ‘WIJXuR P BPIAT AR S T RHSGE SE6D ]
AT REFEYRIFER  RENAZEARE
RERERGERETERAZESBAKT - &t
RHMEENRERR  UARS -

Rewevv and Outlook

COMBINING EXPERIENCE WITH
YOUTHFUL VITALITY

This transformation is a new challenge that calls for new solutions, technology
application and innovation. As the “Shine 30+" report rightly points out, we ought
to re-think our organisational development to get ready for the future, focusing our
efforts on achieving ICAT. Take technician training as an example: the new
generation of technician trainees has grown up with smart phones and mobile
apps, and so it would be absurd if we continue to train them only with old O&M
methods from the last century. Having said that, it does not mean that existing
practices and ideas will become irrelevant. We should treat all our existing skills,
knowledge and experience with respect and as the basis for continuous
development.

Retaining the wisdom of experienced staff is as important as nurturing the
aspirations and vitality of our younger generation. We must bring out and combine
the best qualities in different staff generations. This is also where the “agile” element
comes into play, meaning we must have the organisational agility to try many new
things so that we can learn faster and keep up with the changing times. By the
same token, in the effort to “connect” and be “transparent”, we have encouraged
our staff to “co-own” issues and “co-create” solutions through highly transparent
staff communication and engagement activities.

THE NEXT FIVE YEARS

Looking ahead, a priority in 2017/18 will be to critically review the results of our first
five-year plan, and to develop strategies for the next five years. Without pre-
empting ourselves, it does appear that the current five-year plan has made the
greatest impact on delivering excellent service, keeping customers informed and
boosting customer satisfaction, while also making progress in the other strategic
directions. The latter includes becoming a trade model, building staff capacity and a

caring culture, enhancing knowledge management and green operations.

Rather than being a rigid framework, our five-year plan has in fact helped us stay
focused and acquire a longer-term perspective. It also brings us to another
challenge: how can we create an environment for the E&M trade in Hong Kong to
improve further and faster? EMSTF, as the E&M service provider for government
assets, has more operational flexibility and is well positioned to become a trade
model for others to follow. For instance, we can take on the role of “technology
architect” to set a good example for the trade on how to use technology to
transform O&M work for new levels of excellence. This remains one of our key long-
term goals.
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GRATITUDE AND APPRECIATION

Finally, I would like to thank our clients for their support in the past year, in particular
their enthusiastic participation in the 2016 Customer Opinion Survey. We have been
greatly encouraged by clients’ positive feedback on our improvement measures in

recent years, thus motivating us to strive for further progress.

We must express our heartfelt gratitude to the Executive Board and policy bureaux
for their guidance and support, and all EMSTF staff for their commitment and hard
work. Our appreciation also goes to our contractors for serving our clients, the trade
associations for promoting the E&M trades, and the many universities and

professional bodies which have generously given us their support and advice.

We look forward to continuously engaging with all our stakeholders for another
fruitful year.

Tai Tak-him
Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD
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A 4 EBER%E COMMUTING WITH EASE
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Hong Kong's transport links with mainland and overseas cities have continued to
grow in recent years, underscoring the city’s role both in the Mainland and on the
world stage. This is reflected in the expanding portfolio of our services supporting
the public transport infrastructure, encompassing air, sea and land.

Our work at the Hong Kong International Airport has stabilised in recent years and
we continue to provide O&M services for key airport systems such as Airfield
Ground Lighting (AGL), General Pumping Systems and Sewage Treatment Plants.
We also jointly designed an Uninterruptible Power Transfer Simulator with the
Airport Authority Hong Kong and obtained a design patent. The simulator has
helped us overcome many AGL system maintenance challenges and improved its
operational efficiency.
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Preventive maintenance for the wireless remote-

controlled aircraft tractor at the

Government Flying Service is part of
our service.
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The Marine Department's third-generation Vessel Traffic Services System Phase |l
is another major project for which we provided project management service.
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Also related to airport operations is our collaboration with the Civil Aviation
Department to facilitate the transition to the new air traffic management system.
We also work closely with the Government Flying Service, another pioneer in using
new technologies, on a towbarless wireless remote-controlled aircraft tractor
introduced from Germany. This new tractor can tow aircraft and helicopters of up to
50 tonnes. Compared with traditional models with towbars, this compact tractor is
more flexible, precise and safe, saving both space and energy.

Turning to sea transport, we implemented Phase Il of the Marine Department’s (MD)
third-generation Vessel Traffic Services System in 2016/17 which involved the
installation and testing of highly sophisticated radars at outlying stations for vessel
tracking, navigation and monitoring of Hong Kong waters. At the same time, we
have been helping MD draft the tender specifications for implementing in Hong
Kong a proposed ground station and associated facilities of the Medium Earth Orbit
Search and Rescue system. This is an opportune time to pursue such a project, in
light of an internationally agreed time frame; in fact, major maritime countries are in

the process of developing or implementing similar ground facilities.

EMSTF is closely involved in the city's land transport infrastructure. One example is
the Eastern Harbour Crossing (EHC), which was returned to the Government in
August 2016 by the private operator. EMSTF is now responsible for offering support
to the Transport Department for monitoring the O&M services provided by the
tunnel operator. During the handover, EMSTF monitored the operation of the E&M
systems to ensure a smooth and seamless handover of the EHC to the Government.
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EMSTF also provides project services for E&M systems for road tunnels, and regularly
replaces critical systems such as the Traffic Control and Surveillance Systems. We are
also responsible for monitoring the contractor that operates and maintains the
Tsing Ma Control Area, and we replaced its tolling system in 2016/17.

In an exciting new development, we secured a ten-year Service Level Agreement
with the Highways Department in February 2017 to provide O&M services for the
E&M equipment and systems at the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities of the
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge.

During the year, our project team completed the Red Light Camera System Phase IV
Expansion Project for the Transport Department. The project involved system
design and the installation of digital cameras at 40 new locations across the city.
Phase IV uses radar signals to detect vehicles, which eliminates the need for road
works during system maintenance, as is necessary with the underground-loop
technology used in earlier phases.
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The Transport Department has completed its

Red Light Camera System Phase IV

| \ Expansion Project, which EMSTF helped

@_ design and implement, to enhance

traffic safety.
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To enhance efficiency of our workshop, we introduced a mobile
maintenance management system to keep track of vehicle
maintenance progress and processing volume.
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The next challenge is to reduce harmful emissions. A case in point is the Central-
Wan Chai Bypass tunnel now under construction, where we required the contractor
to construct a sizeable underground ventilation building, the first structure of its
kind in Hong Kong, for filtering all nitrogen oxide from the tunnel air.

The government fleet with over 6 000 vehicles is one of the major road users and
we play a role in ensuring its high availability and roadworthiness via sound
procurement and maintenance. On procurement, all government vehicles that we
help purchase now comply with EURO VI emission standard. To enhance the
efficiency of our fleet maintenance, we implemented in 2016/17 a new advance
booking system for large vans, which has improved the large van fleet availability
by about 2.5%. We have also introduced a mobile maintenance management
system at our vehicle depot to streamline our vehicle reception, inspection and
repairs process. A fleet management system is also being developed with the Hong
Kong Police Force, which will more accurately record and analyse information such
as driving log, driver behaviour and vehicle running conditions, to improve road
safety and fleet efficiency.
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Ms Tsang Wing-yin has been interested in vehicles since
childhood. She joined EMSD in 2016 to become a vehicle
technician trainee to pursue her career goal.
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As a female vehicle technician trainee, Ms Tsang Wing-yin's interest in vehicles
began early, during childhood visits to a relative’s vehicle workshop. She joined
EMSD's Technician Training (TT) Scheme in 2016. The four-year programme includes
comprehensive hands-on training at the EMSD vehicle depot, along with a
Vocational Training Council course.

“The best part about the TT Scheme is that we get to work on many types of
vehicles, both big and small, which is really exciting,” Ms Tsang said. She is most
interested in ambulances, as their great variety of interior fixtures means there is
much to learn. She likes ambulances also because they serve people and play a life-

saving role in the community.

Ms Tsang feels women have an advantage when it comes to tasks that require
patience and attention to detail. “Women are good with electronic gadgets and
system analysis, too,” she said. Her family is very supportive of her career choice, and
she already has her eyes set on a Higher Diploma after completing the TT Scheme.
Her goal? To become a mechanical inspector in the future.

A 4 BEEE ENJOYING EVERYDAY LIFE
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As city dwellers, the people of Hong Kong make use of varied recreational facilities
and enjoy activities like shopping in their daily life. It is EMSTF's duty to make sure
that all E&M systems in markets and recreational and cultural venues operate
smoothly and reliably and are highly energy efficient.

Following the success of a pilot scheme last year, the Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department (FEHD) allotted funding in 2016/17 for a ten-year programme
to replace all aged lifts and escalators in its public markets and cooked food centres.
The move is significant as it kicked off the client’s long-term asset replacement
initiative. We have made use of this opportunity to not only replace the old lifts and
escalators with heavy-duty and more energy-efficient service on-demand models,
but also to apply integrated Building Management System (iBMS) hardware that will
allow us to remotely monitor the operating status of these lifts and escalators so as
to improve their availability and reliability.

Indeed, deploying iBMS solutions and technologies to optimise the energy
efficiency and performance of major E&M systems has been our focus in recent
years. Our chiller replacement and optimisation work will be rolled out at full
strength at various venues after the successful pilot at the Hong Kong Heritage
Museum that saved 15% electricity consumption last year. Meanwhile, a new flying
system deployed at the Kwai Tsing Theatre is another good example of aged asset
replacement. Essential for moving curtains, lights, scenery and other components
during stage performances, the fully computerised system can fly eight bars
simultaneously and is one of the most sophisticated in Hong Kong. With regard to
cultural venues in the pipeline, the East Kowloon Cultural Centre in Kowloon Bay is
expected to open around 2021 and we look forward to servicing the venue.
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The new, computerised flying system which we installed at the Kwai
Tsing Theatre is one of the most sophisticated in Hong Kong. It
moves curtains, lights, scenery and other stage components.
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Improper usage of tail lifts may cause trapping

injuries. Apart from the existing remote control, our

new solution is to install sensors at the back of lorries

to prevent such incidents.
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A clean, green and safe urban environment is vital to the quality of life in Hong
Kong. During the year, our vehicle project team helped FEHD procure new street
washers that use high-pressure water cleaning method, greatly increasing the

efficiency of street cleaning with less water consumption.

Regrettably, there have been several vehicle-mounted tail lift fatalities in Hong Kong
in recent years. The Government is now enforcing new guidance notes that require
all tail lifts to be fitted with a trapping prevention device. During the year, we
helped the Government Logistics Department draft the first specifications and
complete the retrofitting of the new device, including a panic emergency button,
on 23 government vehicles with tail lifts. With experience from the first batch, the
team is retrofitting other similar government vehicles.
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We assisted in converting the
Morse Park Swimming Pool into a
venue for the Aurora &

Snow Carnival during the ~/\7
2016 Christmas season. s
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EMSTF helped the Hong Kong Police Force convert the
former Fire Services Training School at Pat Heung into the
Junior Police Call Permanent Activity Centre and Integrated
Youth Training Camp in a short period of time. We designed
and installed E&M systems there, such as air-conditioning,
lighting and security systems.
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We also helped the Hong Kong Police Force refurbish, in a very short time, the
former Fire Services Training School at Pat Heung and convert it into the Junior
Police Call Permanent Activity Centre and Integrated Youth Training Camp, as
outlined in the Chief Executive’s 2016 Policy Address, with a soft opening in April
2017. Our colleagues also helped the Leisure and Cultural Services Department
transform the Morse Park Swimming Pool into an enchanting European town for
the Aurora & Snow Carnival held there during Christmas in 2016 to the delight of
visitors from home and abroad.
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Regular maintenance service is
provided at a bio-toilet in the
countryside.
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Hikers and other nature lovers will appreciate that we have installed web-based
remote monitoring devices for waste water treatment operation at 73
environmentally-friendly bio-toilets in country parks throughout Hong Kong. A
further 44 bio-toilets will be installed with similar devices to enhance our fault
response service. These projects may be small in scale, but they are of value to the
betterment of the community.

During the year, we also made extensive preparations for the UCI Track Cycling
World Championships held in April 2017 at the Hong Kong Velodrome, where we
continued to provide unfailing support and standby service to ensure every critical
piece of the engineering systems, such as the timer and scoreboard systems, is
always available for such world-class event.

We will continue to work on asset replacement and invest in iBMS as well as energy-
efficient installations to help clients get optimal performance from their E&M
systems, thus making their services ever more reliable and enjoyable for the public.
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In the 2017 UCI Track Cycling
World Championships held at
the Hong Kong Velodrome, we
provided technical support for
all E&M equipment and
received appreciation

\ from the client.
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Resilience in Project
Management Pays
Off in Escalator
Replacement
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The story began at the Kowloon City Market in 2014, when an ageing escalator was
being replaced. “It all started with complaints about the project duration and
hoarding arrangements, which affected several stall owners,” Mr Jairus Wong, the
project engineer explained. He promptly took steps to rearrange work processes to
minimise the business shutdown period and the impact on the tenants and the
public.

Unfortunately, a fire broke out in the neighbouring warehouse where the new
escalator was being stored. The escalator was damaged and a new one had to be
delivered. The delay triggered new complaints, but Mr Wong's team persevered
and kept in close contact with the tenants and the client department to work out a
new schedule.

“We showed the tenants the project plans of similar replacement works and
explained how long the works had taken as reference. We also took steps to help
them reopen their businesses in the interim. It was important that we addressed
the tenants’ concerns so that discussions could proceed smoothly,” Mr Wong said.
The new escalator eventually came into operation in November 2015. Mr Wong
won the praise of stakeholders in this challenging project, and was presented with
the 2016 Ombudsman’s Award as recognition of his performance.

Mr Jairus Wong Kwun-ping, project engineer of the Kowloon City Market
Escalator Replacement Works, wins the Ombudsman’s Award.
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Shui Wai Hospital.
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Maintenance services for hospital equipment, such as operating
theatre lighting and medical refrigerators, are provided at the Tin
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Good health is essential to a happy community. One of our key duties is to help our
public hospitals and healthcare departments operate and maintain their E&M
systems and medical equipment for the benefit of patients and their families.

We are happy to report that EMSTF has successfully secured the contracts from the
Hospital Authority (HA) for another five years from 2017/18, covering O&M services
for electrical, mechanical, air-conditioning and building services systems and
various biomedical equipment in public hospitals and clinics under HA. This new
milestone has given us extra impetus to be ever more customer-focused and
productive.

During the year, we also renewed a five-year Service Level Agreement with the
Government Laboratory, assisted the Prince Philip Dental Hospital to renovate its
training facilities, and helped the Department of Health (DH) procure new testing
equipment for the Government Chinese Medicines Testing Institute opening soon.

Another highlight was the completion of our “Walk-around Energy Survey” for HA's
major acute hospitals and the Hospital Authority Building. The rich data collected
from the survey has enabled us to devise an effective and fact-based energy
management system for these premises. The exercise was so successful that HA has
planned to implement the identified energy management opportunities over the
next five years, which will help HA substantially reduce their energy consumption
upon project completion.
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Air-conditioning is critical in providing a comfortable indoor environment but
consumes much energy. We have been working with HA since 2015 to replace a
total of 38 conventional chillers in nine public hospitals with highly energy-efficient
chillers by 2018 to substantially reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions. This is the largest and most systematic retrofit project of its kind in Hong
Kong. We are delighted to receive the Association of Energy Engineers’ Region Asia
Pacific Rim Energy Project of the Year Award for 2017.

As many facilities in hospitals are life critical, the provision of steady and
uninterrupted power supply for hospitals is of vital importance. However, the
replacement of electrical installations is highly challenging as disruption to normal
hospital services must be kept to a minimum. With co-operation from HA and the
power company, we successfully helped the Tuen Mun Hospital replace two ageing
high voltage installations after long and meticulous preparation work, raising

significantly the reliability of power supply system there.
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We help the Government
Chinese Medicines Testing
Institute procure new testing
equipment and carry out
final inspections before its
opening.
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Our colleagues visiting UK in December 2016 exchanged new
ideas about boiler technology with experts overseas, so as to
enhance staff training and O&M service quality.
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On a different front, we have continued to help the Fire Services Department (FSD)
procure ambulances more effectively. The latest initiative was to adopt standardised
technical specifications for ambulance procurement so as to maximise the limited
vehicle space for rescue services and introduce more competition to the tendering
process. With reference to international standards and by making use of 3D printing
technology to produce a 3D model on a scale of 1 to 24, we worked closely and
discussed with FSD to design a new “concept ambulance”. The first batch of
“concept ambulances”, to be delivered next year, will mark a breakthrough in joint
departmental effort to enhance local ambulance design for public service
improvements.

Energy-saving work aside, we have been seeking to enhance our O&M practices by
focusing on critical technologies with the potential to benefit clients most in the
future, such as boiler and biomedical technologies. We brought in two UK experts
in boiler technology last year, for example, to train our staff, and training on other
equipment is in the pipeline.

- —_——w

A =477 ENR T Y
EIRSHEE =
BiEE - EEFE SHA
AT ERAB ARG -

3D printing technology is used
to produce a 3D “concept
ambulance” model to help our
client better understand the latest
procurement requirements.
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The problem of flying
embers and smoke arising
from heavy use of joss paper
burners at the Diamond Hill
Columbarium was resolved
by our improvement works,
significantly improving air
quality in the surrounding
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Our team has extended its
“client visit” programme to the
Department of Health to better
understand its needs for
enhancing our technical support
services.
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Our “client visit” programme has been so well received by HA's clinical staff over the
past two years that it has been adopted in all HA hospital clusters, and will be
extended to DH next year. In fact, our work is not limited to health-related venues.
For example, we also assisted in resolving air quality problems arising from heavy
use of joss burners at columbaria. In this regard, we helped the Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department enhance the ventilation and smoke exhaust
system of joss paper burners at the Diamond Hill Columbarium. The problem of
flying embers and smoke was effectively resolved, significantly improving air quality
in the neighbouring areas.

In the coming years, several new hospital venues are set to open, including the Tin
Shui Wai Hospital which has been put into partial operation recently, the Yaumatei
Specialist Clinic at the Queen Elizabeth Hospital, the multi-purpose Block T at the
Queen Mary Hospital and the Hong Kong Children’s Hospital. Accordingly, we will
expand our frontline and technical staff teams to take on the new work while
building staff capacity in new technologies and green practices.
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in HV Installation
Replacement
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Assistant inspectors Mr Wong Kwok-fai and Mr Lai Yiu-ki said the biggest
challenge of replacing high voltage installations in hospitals was the time

constraint under which works could proceed.
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Replacing high-voltage (HV) electrical installations at hospitals is highly challenging.
Going behind the scenes at the Tuen Mun Hospital (TMH), we learned that
commitment and good time management were crucial to this seamless HV facilities
replacement project.

The replacement works, which EMSTF closely co-ordinated with TMH and CLP
Power Hong Kong Limited, began in early 2016 and were completed in January
2017. As assistant inspectors for the project, Mr Wong Kwok-fai and Mr Lai Yiu-ki
said the biggest challenge was the time constraint under which works had to
proceed.

"As power suspension was possible for only a few hours after 10 pm, our team
worked extra hours over many nights during the year-long replacement works so as
to minimise disruption to the hospital,” Mr Wong revealed. This effort was matched
by a commitment to communication. “It was important that we briefed every team
member in advance on his duty in the works to ensure that sufficient information
was given and transparency was maintained,” said Mr Lai. The team also maintained
frequent communication with TMH's staff throughout the entire replacement
works, in addition to drawing up a contingency plan and arranging multiple power
supply backups to prepare for all possible contingencies.

It has been worthwhile making all these efforts as the new HV installations have
brought a highly reliable and steady power supply to TMH.
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Hong Kong is one of the safest cities in the world, thanks in large part to the good
work of our disciplined forces and the rule of law. EMSTF also plays a significant role
behind the scene by supporting the relevant government departments with O&M
services that keep their E&M systems operating efficiently, helping everyone in the
community feel safe and secure.

Subsequent to the official opening of the Fire and Ambulance Services Academy by
the Chief Executive in March 2016, we started to take up O&M services for its E&M
systems at the end of 2016. The life-size mock-ups of an aircraft, a ship, and a train,
as reported last year, are fully in place for real-fire simulation firefighting and rescue
training, in addition to earlier completed life-size E&M mock-up installations such as
mini-storage spaces, subdivided flats and configurable labyrinthine spaces.

It is our duty to make sure that the E&M systems in the mock-ups and other E&M
facilities at the academy perform well all year round so that fire brigade trainees can
get the most out of their time at the training facility.
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Life-size mock-ups at the Fire and Ambulance
Services Academy, such as a ship and a petrol
station, which we helped the client design and
introduce, are vital to simulation training.
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The West Kowloon Law Courts Building

\ | ,  was handed over to EMSTF for

~ O&M services in 2016/17.

The new West Kowloon Law Courts Building, with over 30 courtrooms and state-of-
the-art facilities, has been handed over to EMSTF for O&M services and is now fully
operational. Another venue we have taken over for O&M services is the new Yau Ma
Tei Police Station. Our team is also advising the Hong Kong Police Force on ways to
save energy at police stations and venues. We are happy to play a role in work
related to law enforcement and administration of justice for the public.

Maintaining the safety and security of existing government buildings is equally
important. It is our first priority to ensure that the electrical installations at the
Central Government Offices and Legislative Council Complex, two of the most
critical venues in Hong Kong, are safe and in good working condition. We have
completed the periodic inspection, testing and certification for their electrical
installations smoothly without disrupting normal services to the public. Staff

commitment and collaboration are essential to our work excellence.
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Upgrading and modernising existing facilities at correctional institutions has been
another highlight of our work. In addition to taking over O&M services at the Tai
Lam Centre for Women in 2016/17, we have been in discussions with the
Correctional Services Department to install keyless Electric Locks Security Systems
at all prisons in Hong Kong and to upgrade all existing CCTV systems.

On border security, we continued to procure and maintain mobile X-ray inspection
units for the Customs and Excise Department during the year. In another
development, preparation work for the opening of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge (HZMB) is underway. We have been helping various disciplined forces
involved in the Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities of HZMB to design and
procure various E&M and electronic systems and facilities.
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- To make better use of
— renewable energy, we
maintained a solar hot water
system and photovoltaic
system at the Tai Lam Centre
for Women for the
Correctional Services
Department.
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EMSTF is responsible for providing adequate lighting at all polling cum counting
stations in all elections in Hong Kong that are conducted by the Registration and
Electoral Office. We also set up additional lighting and ad hoc power points at
stations where necessary. During 2016/17, we provided temporary station lighting
and power for the Legislative Council General Election in September 2016 and the
Election Committee Subsector Ordinary Elections in December 2016. The Legislative
Council General Election was unusual in that there were so many last-minute voters
at some stations that additional lighting had to be promptly put in place to ensure
that voters could queue up outdoors in a well-lit environment. The last station to
close was in Taikoo Shing. The last vote was cast there at almost 2:30 am, four hours
after the poll was originally scheduled to close, and all the while we provided ad
hoc standby.

(top) held in 2016/17.
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Adequate station lighting and standby
support services are essential to
polling cum counting stations at
elections. We provided such
services for the Legislative
Council General Election (right)
and the Election Committee
Subsector Ordinary Elections
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To help clients save energy, we have proactively applied new
technologies such as installing EC fans at the Hong Kong Police
LU\ College.
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We also help our clients explore the applications of new technologies. For example,
we installed an air-handling unit with electronically commutated (EC) fans at the
Hong Kong Police College as a pilot. An EC fan has a brushless direct current motor
and incorporates voltage transformation within the motor. It saves energy, is easier
to maintain and delivers reliable performance. We are hopeful that EC technology
will be useful to other clients and venues in due course.

While our supporting role may not be immediately visible to the public, we take our
responsibilities seriously and will continue to help our clients optimise their
operations and efficiency via good O&M work, innovative technologies and green
practices.
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Inspector Mr Cheng Kwok-keung and his team proactively
enhanced the compressed-air filling machine at the Wong Tai
Sin Fire Station, and received commendation from the client.
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One of the lesser-known stories about the Ngau Tau Kok mini-storage fire incident
in June 2016 was the critical role played by a compressed-air filling machine at the
Wong Tai Sin Fire Station. The machine is used for supplying compressed air to
firemen'’s breathing apparatus.

“The summers in Hong Kong are too hot for the German-made compressed-air
filling machine in the station to operate continuously,” Mr Cheng Kwok-keung, an
inspector responsible for the maintenance of the machine at the time, shared the
story.

Mitigation measures were put in place soon after the air-tank filling machine was
installed at the Wong Tai Sin Fire Station in 2013. These measures included air-
conditioning to keep the ambient temperature at an optimal level of between 20 to
30 degrees Celsius, ventilation to remove the heat produced by the machine, and
sensors to ensure no other gases could get into the firemen'’s air tanks. The
measures proved their worth during the Ngau Tau Kok blaze, when the
compressed-air filling machine operated without fail for four days and nights,
recharging efficiently hundreds of air tanks for the firefighters. “Our work passed the
test under the most demanding conditions,” Mr Cheng added.
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We have added an “energy dashboard” at EMSD
Headquarters Building to help monitor real-time
energy consumption of specific areas of the building.
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To encourage energy saving and environmental ~
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protection, solar wind hybrid street lights are installed at
our headquarters piazza.
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As the maintenance agent of E&M installations in government buildings, we are
well positioned to help our clients deploy innovative technology solutions that help

them raise efficiency, save energy and be more environment-friendly.

Further to completing energy audits for 150 government buildings in 2015/16, and
identifying their energy management opportunities (EMOs), our work on energy
audits for other government buildings continued in 2016/17. This has led to more
EMOs. The Chief Executive has also pledged in his 2017 Policy Address to earmark
provisions for energy-saving projects for government buildings.

With forthcoming government funding at about $700 million for energy-saving and
renewable energy (RE) projects in government buildings, the next few years will see
the implementation of EMOs and RE projects in full swing, taking energy saving in
government buildings to a new level.

A related measure is stepping up the installation of energy measurement and
management systems for E&M systems for more accurate energy consumption and
other data measurement. Data is sent to the Central Control Monitoring System,
which is connected to our integrated Building Management System for monitoring
the operating status of E&M facilities in key government buildings.

We have also installed at EMSD Headquarters Building an “energy dashboard” as a
pilot to precisely monitor real-time energy consumption of specific areas of the
building. This can help staff adopt better housekeeping measures to save energy
and change their energy consumption culture. The dashboard may also be useful
to other government buildings to help save energy.
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Once faults are detected, the Remote
Monitoring Units installed on traffic lights
will trigger the Central Monitoring System
to send instant SMS notifications to our
maintenance team for speedy
O repairs. Photos show our staff
checking the operation of the

O Units.
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We have also been working on several sustainability initiatives to set an example.
During 2016/17, EMSD Headquarters Building was awarded the Final Platinum
Rating Certification under BEAM Plus Existing Buildings and the Platinum Rating
Certification under BEAM Plus Neighbourhood. EMSTF is now helping client
departments achieve BEAM Plus certification for existing buildings, which will
benefit their energy saving and overall sustainability.

During the year, we continued with the construction of a substation of the District
Cooling System (DCS) at the Kai Tak Development, as part of the final preparations
for connecting EMSD Headquarters Building to the chilled water supply by the
highly energy-efficient DCS.

In response to rapid developments in big data and smart city concepts worldwide,
EMSTF has set up a Smart City Task Force. Led by the senior management, it
explores how we can help clients implement innovative ideas that will facilitate
Hong Kong to become a smart city of the future.
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The heat exchanger of the District Cooling System is now
connected to EMSD Headquarters Building to provide chilled
water for its air-conditioning system. It is expected to save

A 3D model of our
headquarters piazza and its
greening facilities, for which
we were awarded the
Platinum Rating Certification
under BEAM Plus
Neighbourhood (Pilot
Version) in December 2016.
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Our work to support the Development Bureau’s initiative to promote the use of
Building Information Modelling (BIM) in the O&M of buildings, integrated with our
Asset Management (AM) System, reached a milestone in February 2017 when a
Hong Kong patent for our BIM-AM was granted. This enables us to further promote
BIM to the trades in the O&M of buildings. Our next step is to work with the
Development Bureau and the Construction Industry Council to help establish BIM
standards tailored for Hong Kong, so that professionals and workers of various
disciplines involved in the design, construction and maintenance of buildings can
work according to a set of common standards.

around 15% in annual electricity consumption.
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Simple and innovative solutions can also go a long way towards raising E&M
equipment availability and reliability across the city. A case in point is our current
efforts to install Remote Monitoring Units (RMUs) on electrical switchboards,
footbridge lifts and escalators, as well as some non-networked traffic lights. The
Central Monitoring System can send instant SMS messages to maintenance
personnel for rectification once faults are detected by RMUs, thus minimising the
inconvenience to the public.

Another example is a unique mobile chiller system that we designed and
constructed. This innovative, highly efficient system provides emergency chilled
water backup supply to public hospitals within 24 hours from the occurrence of a
chiller plant breakdown. It helps ensure reliable and continuous supply of central
air-conditioning in hospitals for the safety and comfort of patients.

Our colleagues are passionate about developing IT solutions that help us better
serve our clients, such as an application called KITE System developed in-house.
Currently at the trial stage, it remotely keeps track of contractors’ staff attending
designated locations as part of our effort to enhance contractor management.
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EMSTF proactively designs and produces various
value-added service solutions, such as this innovative
mobile chiller, to meet clients’ urgent cooling demand.
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Mr Francis Yuen, the project’s assistant engineer, has worked on BIM-AM ever since
its inception in 2014. The project began when the Development Bureau asked
EMSD to conduct a pilot at EMSD Headquarters Building to try BIM on the asset
management of buildings. “The brief was clear but no solution was in sight,”
recalled Mr Yuen, explaining that BIM had been used in Hong Kong for designing
buildings, but not for maintenance. Even finding the right contractor was initially a
challenge. The breakthrough came when the project team finally integrated the
various ideas and technical solutions into what later became the BIM-AM System.

Another important character in the story of BIM-AM is Mr Yim Chi-ming, a principal
technical officer who developed the BIM model for EMSD Headquarters Building
and more recently the one for the Tin Shui Wai Hospital. “The work is exciting. BIM is
a very useful visual database that helps the users immediately see the results of the
planned works,” said Mr Yim.

The biggest reward? Both agreed that it was the recognition given to the BIM-AM
System by the trade and professional institutions, and the great interest generated
locally and overseas.

Mr Francis Yuen, assistant engineer (left), and Mr Yim Chi-ming, principal
technical officer (right), are key members of our team that developed the BIM-
AM System.
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Our corporate support units have been working hard to carry out various initiatives
during 2016/17 under our five strategies. The aim is to support our engineering
teams in serving clients and the community with care and innovation, so that
citizens will enjoy a better quality of life. Four years into implementation, our five
strategies are in full swing. Similar to last year, we have monitored and reviewed
EMSTF performance using a set of Key Performance Indicators (KPI). The highlights
of our endeavours are as follows.

A4 AKEER PROGRESS UNDER OUR FIVE STRATEGIES
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EMS0 Quality & Safety Day

Client satisfaction is a key performance indicator of this strategy. We are delighted
to report that, thanks to our clients’ continuous support, EMSTF achieved a record
high score of 6.45 out of 8 in the Customer Satisfaction Index of its Customer
Opinion Survey 2016. Responding proactively to clients’ views and suggestions in
recent years, we have implemented a series of improvement initiatives, which
include keeping clients informed, applying new technology, enhancing contract

management, and providing accurate contract price estimates to our clients.
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More than 300 staff members and
guests participated in the Quality and
Safety Day 2016 to share and
recognise staff contribution to service
quality and occupational health
and safety improvements.
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To go beyond the aspiration of our clients in delivering public services, we have
been carrying out E&M asset categorisation and certification as scheduled for
analysing asset information and planning for asset rejuvenation. Moreover, the E&M
asset information has been integrated with the Corporate Computer System to set
out a holistic asset management system. Besides, we have successfully deployed IT
technologies to monitor the performance of maintenance contracts through the
"Performance Monitoring System for Maintenance Contract (PMSMC)" system. The
PMSMC will integrate with the new Customer Centric e-Platform (CCeP) to provide
real time job process information for enhancing our customer services.

The implementation of the CCeP, the backbone of our future Customer Service
Centre (CSC), is an important strategic initiative for enhancing services to clients
under our current five-year strategic plan. The CCeP has been under development
in phases starting with the health service teams in the year. The first milestone was
achieved in September 2016 when the CCeP - Hospital Authority (HA) Enterprise
Asset Management System Interface (CCeP-EAM) was commissioned to exchange
job information with the new asset management system of HA. The CCeP-EAM
streamlined work process on data input and improved data consistency under the
CCeP initiative.

A CCeP - Job Management (CCeP-JM) system is being developed using agile
methodology with full staff engagement. The CCeP-JM will be the core building
block of CCeP for capturing job status in a timely manner which will empower the
CSC to keep clients better informed of our services. Aiming for a roll-out in 2017/18,
our computer services team has been working very closely with Strategic Business
Units (SBUs) to pave the way for system implementation and integration in the
following year. Work on the new CSC is also underway, with extra accommodation

approved and preliminary design completed.
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The Secretary for the Civil Service’s Commendation
Awards Presentation Ceremony 2016 SLETER
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Pictured are the then Chief Executive the
Honourable C Y Leung with the three
awardees from EMSD and their
families at the Secretary for the Civil
Service's Commendation

Awards Presentation

Ceremony 2016.
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BB BREREE (BEa) B o
Item Key Performance Indicators (Unit)’ 9 !
Target Results

1. S ONEIE:ESTY 31 53
Return on Revenue (%) ' '

2 FRAEE(EER) s 15
New Business and Growth of Busmess (SM) ’

3. B MERBIAY RWD 6.3 645
Customer Satisfaction Index [on an 8-point scale] ’ ’

4 ERETHRIAT % 0 o .
Percentage of Service Level Agreement (SLA) Renewed during the Year (%) )

5 ABEASESHEL o5 v06s
Percentage of Satisfaction Level Based on Monthly Customer Feedback (%) '

6 SEEEESETESIIHNAH is 520
Training Days/EMSTF Staff (no. of training days per staff) ’ )

7. BILmBEHRHA107 RmD] 68 682
Staff Satisfaction Rating [on a 10-point scale] ’ ’

8. B Ti2EE 75 13
Awards for Staff Suggestion Scheme Proposal (no.)

o EERFAFBAMTHEREE - 5007
Percentage of SLA Service Performance Target Compliance (%) '

10 STREEESETAZBMENSH(STAHE ; .
Reportable Accidents per 1 000 EMSTF Staff (no. per 1 000 staff) ’

1. EROEDIIRE 0 0
Statutory Non-compliance (no.)

12. FEE (FTRNE) [METIREMEITAE - BP0 R F R ETE )
Electricity Consumption (kWh) [EMSD Headquarters, Corporate Data Centre and all SBUs 10 838 767° 10 492 055°

Venues]

O RASEERBARKEIREEES  ERFE7  FRFENE  BRARBAKEIRES -
Allitems apply to EMSTF only, except items 7, 8 and 12 which apply to EMSD as a whole.
P BT R016FNASER -
Result from the survey conducted in 2016.
P BTEMEIRBEINEEESETAZRNBEINRE  DHIR40RRSISR(TEEIFAKETIZE AIMLELRNEIN) -
The number of reportable accidents per 1 000 staff for EMSD and EMSTF were 4.90 and 5.35 respectively (excluding traffic accidents not due to the fault of EMSD drivers).
© B2015/16 FEML - WTRIAEINR 2016117 FEA LFABE - ()8 #HEASER —SEHRE : () BE T X T IHERE o
Two types of accidents showed an increasing trend of occurrence in FY201 6/1 7 when compared with FY2015/16 — (i) Slip, trip or fall on same level; and (ii) Striking against fixed or
stationary object.
SO 0IY/UFENEEE(NMBREPERE) -
Baseline electricity consumption (exclude client usage) as of FY2013/14.
o ER(LE016/17FENREE (HREFEAE) -

Normalised electricity consumption (exclude client usage) as of FY2016/17.

HE%%E‘DE&H&ﬁ@ﬁﬁtﬁ&f?m%ﬁeﬂ%ﬁ o HPIZE  Quality service and occupational health and safety (OHS) are prerequisites for
WIRERLEH2016] 2 [HENSEZRE] - [H&  service excellence. Our Quality and Safety Day 2016 provided an opportunity for the
FERRERE] & r%%ﬂ%;ﬂkﬂ&ifl #2 ] #7848  winning teams of the Best Improvement Project Awards, Best Green Project Awards
B A0 ETIREERTEAIFESM  and the Best OHS Enhancement Project Awards to showcase their innovative ideas
REME - BE—F—ENEHLAHE EE\IE}E and best practices to over 300 staff members and guests. The annual event is
HIVEREMNESHTEIENBEER - WE MDD  meaningful as always and is welcomed by staff as their efforts in quality and OHS
ZRBEKR  FAMERZ  BASRIEEED - improvements are formally recognised and shared.

016%F L EECHERECREEBAKE S EMSTF's service excellence was once again recognised by the Secretary for the Civil
RRERTR - ZL 2 MERN TIZREE - & - Service's Commendation Awards 2016. Three colleagues from Projects Division,
RERFRITIEIMEFETIRETOSERE - ZF  Transport, Security and Central Services Division and Health Sector Division
KRERFEPRBITERREE  EHIEEELE - respectively were awarded for their outstanding client service over the years.

o
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2016 VISION AWARDS

ANNUAL REPORT COMPETITION

is presented with the

Platinum Award

Jor excellence within its industry on the development of
the organizatian's annual report for the past fiscal year.

Dl gparimet

Tyson Heyn Christine Kennedy
Principal Comperition Directar

Electrical and Mechanical Services American Communications
EDICO Financial Press Services Limited
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The EMSD Annual Report
2015/16 won the League of

Professionals’ 2016 Vision
Awards — Platinum Award.
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The EMSD Annual Report 2015/16 won the 2016 Vision Awards organised by the
League of American Communications Professionals, a major recognition for our
communication with clients and the public. The awards won included Platinum
Award - Government Industry; Gold Award — Best Letter to Shareholders in the
Asia-Pacific region; Top 80 Reports in the Asia-Pacific region (ranked 17th) and Top
100 Reports Worldwide (ranked 50th) in 2016.

Many clients also joined us at the EMSTF 20th Anniversary Thanksgiving Ceremony
held in September 2016 at our headquarters, officiated by the then Chief Secretary
for Administration and well attended by senior government officials, past Directors
of Electrical and Mechanical Services, clients and E&M industry leaders. We were
delighted to commemorate the special occasion marking EMSTF's successful
partnership with clients in the past two decades and our continuous quest to excel
for the future.

BETREEES20FAFRIAEE
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FHEEIMNRE -

Officiating at the EMSTF 20th Anniversary
Thanksgiving Ceremony are the then Chief
Secretary for Administration, Mrs Carrie
Lam, with our guests, management team
and young staff representatives of EMSD.
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To attract youngsters to the E&M
trade, we participated in the
Education & Careers Expo 2017 to
showcase the job
% opportunities, career
path and training

schemes at EMSD.
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The EMSD Summit explored
a wide range of topics on
future city development,
and was well received by
the industry.
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Become a Trade Model

A major concern of the E&M trade in recent years is how to ensure adequate supply
of quality talents so that the trade may continue to thrive and meet soaring
manpower demand. As the leader of the Hong Kong Electrical and Mechanical
Trade Promotion Working Group comprising 19 organisations, we have
spearheaded many initiatives to encourage young people to join the industry, such
as participating in the annual four-day Education & Careers Expo 2017 held in
February at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre. We also took part in
the two-day Electrical and Mechanical Trades Expo 2017 — E&M New Generation
held in March at the Vocational Training Council Kwai Chung Complex, targeting
secondary students.

To set an example for the trade, we have pledged to train 100 new technician
trainees per year under the new initiative of “Train for the Trade” via our Technician
Training Scheme from 2016 to 2020 to provide a steady supply of tradesmen and
craftsmen for Hong Kong. A related new initiative is the Pilot Cooperative
Apprentice Training Scheme where EMSD partners with the Hong Kong Federation
of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited, the Drainage Services Department,
the Water Supplies Department and other partnering companies to provide
attachment opportunities for technician trainees under the “Train for the Trade”
initiative to enrich their exposure and skills.

Every year we organise many technical seminars to facilitate knowledge sharing
among the E&M trade. As part of the EMSTF 20th anniversary celebratory activities,
we held a special series of Innovation Technology Sharing and Trade Technology
Seminars during May and June 2016. Scholars from various universities in Hong
Kong and other experts spoke on some 50 topics, attracting over 1 600 attendees
from client departments, the trade and the academia.

EEEZS2FAFHEREMEIESE - £2016F 1 AR
EEREERTH (REIREBEIRHRE — 8-
Bl¥iBR] - BE—REMNRE - SENMEEY -
il RN BERRETREE  EHBEBRK
MRTEE  UHEESITERTERENGEECEE
BRI - BEREZELEE  BISEEE8 - #
BEIRMAFBERROEAITESEM  HEEE400
ZA e

ERERBB2ENREHBEEER (REIREL
2RERFMIER2016F 11 KM - #ET
BRENCEBETEMNSIIER  R20165F5 ALK
MEECNERETIEL2EEIIEIES]) - ELX
HEIIENBATNREMRE  ROAFBREERR
BEIIEP TUALE - o - HPIR 20169 10 A2
WMTAREHATE  BRMOARE S ZBZEA
AR EMCE -

BURTAreRmMIE(t

BWETEE2016FE T REERAEL2016/17FER
ERTIEZz— BAELERBET  L0D BRI

LEIﬁ%‘fﬁ?‘ﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁ”?68’\ﬁwﬁi¥ﬁ% » H 2014
FREMENADE R R X AENDEEXREZE
40% * 2014 F M EIEEZ% - R AHAERHE
EITH 0GB E AR TR THIHE TS H
B EE T AR AEMAR A S BRCEREE -
ETImEEEAFS FHRMOFAEVYETS
BLEIRAIE UL M T S E R B 7 A IE 7 ©

FA - RPEEMEE T ek - MRRITHRIR
B TRMFHS - PARHEH & IEHTI o BFIRE - FfI
BEZAETERERTGAKETIEEMABET(E
EEFAZEMIMPANABR) RHBERY - 28 R/E
TEBETI0HENE - ARFERNEE TR

AT URIMEEESE B RIBERE - %
BERYTEAMGR RETRHERBTRAES
R RTS ©

w owm “tuso
SIS 1111 1 i

Another pioneering event was the 1.5-day EMSD Summit — Imaginovate Hong

Kong held in November 2016 at the Hong Kong Science Park, also the grand finale
of our 20th anniversary celebrations. The Summit aimed to explore the future city
development of Hong Kong from the perspectives of buildings, transportation,
energy and sustainability in a bid to transform Hong Kong into a world-class green
and smart city of the future. Speakers included prominent academics, top
government officials and leaders in E&M engineering and sustainability disciplines.
More than 400 participants attended the event.

The EMSD Safety and Health Handbook was completed and issued in November
2016, with valuable input from the trade. The Guidelines on Enhanced Safety
Measures for Work-at-Height were also issued and implemented in May 2016
according to the latest requirements from the Labour Department. The documents
capture the most current best practices, and we encourage the E&M trade to make
reference to them in their daily work. In addition, a Contractors Forum was
organised in October 2016 to share our OHS knowledge and best practices with our
contractors.

Build Capacity and Caring Culture

A highlight of 2016/17 was the EMSD Staff Satisfaction Survey 2016 which returned
a record high of 6.8 out of 10 in overall staff satisfaction rating, against 6.4 in the
previous Survey in 2014. The 40% response rate was also 5% higher than that in
2014. The Survey and the subsequent 20 focus group discussions led to a new staff
engagement approach which will enable staff to co-own and co-create various
improvement measures. The high satisfaction score shows that our initiatives in
recent years to build capacity and a caring culture are on the right track.

During the year, we continued to develop the Staff Competency Matrix. Also,
existing programmes on staff well-being were enhanced and new initiatives
launched. For example, we continued to commission the Hong Kong Family
Welfare Society to provide counselling services to all EMSD staff, including those
seconded to other departments. About 10 briefings by experts were held for staff to
promote work-life balance and their awareness of physical, mental and emotional
health. A designated hotline is available for staff to obtain unlimited consultation or
counselling services.
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To enhance staff awareness of
the importance of mental and
physical health, we provide
counselling services as well as
organising various regular
workshops.
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A new Chinese online newsletter called EMSD Frontline News was launched to
enhance communication with frontline staff, so that they are kept abreast of the
Department’s latest developments and issues pertinent to frontline needs. Five
issues were published during 2016/17. It augments our existing staff newsletter
Group Voice which caters for all staff.

In the spirit of engaging staff, the Department’s Uniform Working Group not only
collected the views of EMSTF frontline staff about options of their new uniforms
designed by professional designers from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, but
also invited over 2 000 eligible staff members to vote on the design options.
Furthermore, about 100 frontline staff representatives participated in a trial wearing
of the new uniforms, which has been targeted to launch by end 2018, to facilitate
minor touch-ups for extra comfort at work.
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The Uniform Working Group hired a
professional consultant and collected
the views of frontline staff in
designing new uniforms for our
frontline staff.

To promote barrier-free access for staff, the access control system at our
headquarters building was upgraded in 2017. New access readers using Bluetooth
and NFC technologies have been installed at key entrance points throughout the
building. Staff may use a smartphone app instead of access card to unlock doors for
easier access, which is especially convenient for wheelchair users and staff
transporting goods and documents in trolleys.

Enhance Knowledge Management

As our Knowledge Communities Portal continued to develop, we also upgraded
the virtual private network system for connecting remote offices to the
headquarters. In this way, remote SBU offices were enabled to use our corporate IT
resources seamlessly. These new conveniences have boosted our corporate
information sharing and knowledge management capabilities.

As mentioned last year, a new knowledge management (KM) tool called Knowledge
Map (K-map) was introduced. K-map is a KM tool for the identification of knowledge
item (what), its owner (who) and location (where) for categorising knowledge
assets. K-map codifies the knowledge needs of staff (such as access to documents
and knowledgeable colleagues) in critical processes, helping colleagues posted to a
new position to learn new work processes in a timely manner. By end 2016/17, a
total of 12 K-maps were completed, covering critical processes from a wide range of
knowledge areas, for example, electrical fire investigation, lift and escalator
inspection, works tendering and vehicle procurement.
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\ / The Enlightenment Forums provide a platform

for guest speakers and colleagues to share
experience in and insights into E&M and
other related matters.
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Plans are also underway to use Interest Groups (IGs) to further promote new
technology application at work. As of end 2016/17, 40 1Gs have been formed
voluntarily, covering 19 E&M areas and some 740 staff members from both
professional and technical grades. In the coming fiscal year, EMSTF will consider
providing seed funding and pairing-up opportunities for IGs to work with university
researchers or industry partners to conduct pilot testing of new technology

applications in our work.

— BIE R/ CERGRERCEN2EESTHIE]
HEG L MRFBLLEESHNEL RER -
Deputy Director/Trading Services, Mr Tai Tak-him, briefs
colleagues on the EMSTF history and development at the
EMSTF 20th Anniversary Sharing Session.
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Additional green features
at the EMSD Headquarters
Building main entrance
lobby.
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Our focus is to operate all EMSTF activities and processes in a green and sustainable

manner and save natural resources like water, electricity and paper. A new energy
management system using smart meters and an energy dashboard was introduced
at our headquarters building, so that each division can obtain real-time data of its
electricity consumption to facilitate more effective monitoring and control of its
energy consumption.

Green procurement is a key component of our sustainability practice and we
adhere closely to the Environment Bureau's circulars and guidelines to adopt green
specifications in our purchases as far as practicable. The Purchasing Module of our
Corporate Computer System now provides to all staff the latest green purchase
requirements for compliance.

The handling and disposal of waste and products at the end of their life cycles is an
issue of concern in the community and a new focus in our work. The Environmental
Protection Department has issued guidelines while the Promotion of Recycling and
Proper Disposal (Electrical Equipment and Electronic Equipment) (Amendment)
Ordinance 2016 has also made clear certain guiding principles. We have made
reference to both in drawing up the necessary licensing requirements in our
Producer Responsibility Scheme which will be included in our quotation and tender
documents once the licensing regime is in place.

Our headquarters building continues to implement various green building
initiatives as well as indoor greening features. Subsequent to our obtaining
Platinum Rating Certification under BEAM Plus Neighbourhood during the year, we
made final preparation work on connecting our air-conditioning system to the
chilled water supply from the District Cooling System at Kai Tak Development in
May 2017. This would be another energy efficiency booster for our headquarters
and make us one of the System users to save energy, reduce carbon emissions and
contribute to protecting the environment.
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Legislative Council

Opinion

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Trading Fund set out on pages 53 to 76, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund as at 31 March 2017, and of
its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the Trading Funds
Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of my report. | am independent of the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Trading Fund in accordance with those standards, and | have
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards. |
believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of the General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund for the financial statements

The General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and section 7(4) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance, and for such internal control as the General Manager, Electrical
and Mechanical Services Trading Fund determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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Responsibilities of the General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund for the financial statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the General Manager, Electrical and
Mechanical Services Trading Fund is responsible for assessing the ability of the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing standards, |
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout

the audit. | also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

—  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Trading Fund’s internal control;

—  evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund;



#

BT EERWME 2N T
Report of the Director of Audit e LIQ %% .
Statement of Comprehensive Income

]

IREEBEES T —R"E—tFH|E EMSTF REPORT 2016/17

HH]»S

s' "" s' 4 Z 1 = /4;; . 7, TR . . . . \
FIETL B B R T AR IENE(F () Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued) B 2017463 831 AL EE for the year ended 31 March 2017
e _ ) (LB BT Tl 51 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
— HEHREIRSEESCHKIBURELEES —  conclude on the appropriateness of the General Manager, Electrical and
SEEMNMER LIRS - WREMESMNEST Mechanical Services Trading Fund’s use of the going concern basis of .
g N ks
BEHEREGERAEMNIBEREH  mMA accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material Note o 016
AIREEIA T TR EEASIFEL LN NBEK uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
BARENEATETEN - MRBER/GFEE doubt on the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund's ability to -
AAREEY  BAVNBAESEGTEREFFTA continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | IR Turnoyer G) LA >./64,171
ERERBRREDINRBEEEE - BEME am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related = Operating costs @ (2803028 (5,430,140)
BENHEBEETE  REERTIEERE S disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, BRI Profit f .
RIZRRTEN RS o ﬁﬁ'}%?ﬁ%%ﬁ“@i%ﬁﬁm#ﬁ to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence . Or:: It' rom operations 393,630 334031
S HIEFTREMEERE - A KRBk obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or i therincome ©) LA 174959
ISR BT TIRLEL S TS E conditions may cause the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund to .
o ) ) Z&=NEBBAER Profit before notional profits tax 520,319 508,990
KE s R cease to continue as a going concern; and
2 FEFIEF Notional profits tax ©®) (83,376) (82,502)
— I EEEHmENEENS AR SBANRE —  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial BRI Profit for th
BEFEER  URVBREESHAERBER statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements =~ 9 rolit forthe year R 426488
) ) ) : H 2w Other comprehensive income - _
S HMEIE - represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
FEAZEKRSE Total comprehensive income for the year 436,943 426,488
. . BEE&EEDRE Rate of return on fixed assets 7 39.1% 33.8%
FiEER EEZE  Kenneth Ho Audit Commission & @ ? 0
(B EPEERMAEERIT) EWBET  Assistant Director of Audit 26th Floor
EL4TE75%  for Director of Audit Immigration Tower F58E 76 MM T At The notes on pages 58 to 76 form part of these financial statements.
AREBHAE 20612 7 Gloucester Road BT R i) — 2P 5

Wanchai, Hong Kong

201798 22H 22 September 2017
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Statement of Financial Position

FR20179F3H31H asat 31 March 2017 R2017F3H31H asat 31 March 2017
(LB B FThr3) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LB TF T3 ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B5E BIsE
Note 2017 2016 Note 2017 2016
FRBEE Non-current assets EARRFEE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
LI PN ESY Y Property, plant and equipment (8) 842,875 823,030 BIEESBEN Trading fund capital (16) 706,600 706,600
B EE Intangible assets 9 14,348 1,125 RE &R Retained earnings 2,915,858 2,724,487
HNEE S 17 Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 3,000,000 3,000,000 RS Proposed dividend 239,172 213,244
3,857,223 3,824,155 3,861,630 3,644,331
REEE Current assets
ety Inventories 71,138 75,746 F58 276 AT AL The notes on pages 58 to 76 form part of these financial statements.
R 7NN
SNE RS TFK Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 620,646 504,982 MBHREREO—#D
JE WSR3k S FEAT IR 3R Debrtors and prepayments (11) 28,240 31,021
JE U B3 A IR Amounts due from related parties (22) 216,798 279,234
SRITIEK Bank deposits 3,200,000 2,260,000 _
Re MIRTTEERR Cash and bank balances 26,370 5435 BKfE SIT WING HANG
BRI General Manager (Acting)
4,163,192 3156418 BETREEES Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
D R=R Current liabilities 201789 A2H 22 September 2017
b Customers’ deposits (12) (1,356,093) (941,744)
FERTIR R Creditors (823,691) (801,986)
JETREE A LIRR Amounts due to related parties (22) (177,267) (175,622)
B EE T B Provision for employee benefits (13) (79,590) (68,742)
IRIEY A Deferred revenue (14) (1,183,962) (833,900)
ENEEFERH Notional profits tax payable (43,360) (35,735)
(3,663,963) (2,857,729)
REEETHE Net current assets 499,229 298,689
BEERERBAR Total assets less current liabilities 4,356,452 4,122,844
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
IRIEF TR Deferred tax (15) (19,295) (12,200)
B B1EFIBE Provision for employee benefits (13) (475,527) (466,313)
(494,822) (478,513)
EEFH NET ASSETS 3,861,630 3,644,331
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BZE2017F3 H31 HIEFE for the year ended 31 March 2017

(LB B FThr3) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2017 2016
FAEEeR Balance at beginning of year 3,644,331 3,421,412
FELHzAKE Total comprehensive income for the year 436,943 426,488
FREEE Dividend paid during the year (219,644) (203,569)
FRER Balance at end of year 3,861,630 3,644,331
FS8E 76 EMMIFE AL The notes on pages 58 to 76 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2017F3 31 HIFFE for the year ended 31 March 2017
(BB F Tl 3R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
PiaE
Note 2017 2016
EEEENRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
BIEREF Profit from operations 393,630 334,031
e R Depreciation and amortisation 32,975 35,181
HEDE  RENMBEMEURE  Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (104) (165)
FERRE LD/ (3En) Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 4,608 (4,303)
JEUL R 3R R TR IR SR A Decrease/(Increase) in debtors and prepayments
B/ () 836 (639)
R 8B A IR FKER Decrease in amounts due from related parties 62,436 5333
B4 88N Increase in customers’ deposits 414,349 179,654
JFEASTIR FXAYIE N Increase in creditors 21,705 82,862
BT REE A TR FRA9IE N Increase in amounts due to related parties 1,645 13,042
12 E BB E Ry N Increase in provision for employee benefits 20,062 14,920
EAE U A HY 340 Increase in deferred revenue 350,062 222,956
BB ERESH Notional profits tax paid (68,656) (80,471)
REEEEAMBESTFE Net cash from operating activities 1,233,548 802,401
REBEENRERE Cash flows from investing activities
[RB EABR AR 18 3 18 A &Y Increase in bank deposits with original maturity
RITIFEREIE A0 over three months (1,430,000) (1,100,000)
SNEE S TFREY (BEIN) /B (ncrease)/Decrease in placement with
the Exchange Fund (115,664) 113,419
BEYE  REREM Purchase of property, plant and equipment
IVONE: S A=Y and intangible assets (66,145) (31,962)
HEWME  REREVE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 206 165
2 UHLE Interest received 128,634 194,550
ARKREEENREFE Net cash used in investing activities (1,482,969) (823,828)
MEEENRERE Cash flows from financing activities
B E Dividend paid (219,644) (203,569)
ARREEENESEE Net cash used in financing activities (219,644) (203,569)
RERERRESNBDFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (469,065) (224,996)
RERERIRENENLEE  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 1,165,435 1,390,431
BeRERBENEFEREEH Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (19) 696,370 1,165,435
FS8E 76 MM AL The notes on pages 58 to 76 form part of these financial statements.
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(Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

GENERAL

The Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund (EMSTF) was established on 1
August 1996 under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 26 June 1996
pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) to
provide comprehensive electrical, mechanical and electronic services, vehicle

services, and project and consultancy services to clients.

Government bureaux, departments and autonomous bodies have the freedom to
use the services of the EMSTF or to choose alternative service providers to meet
part or all of their electrical and mechanical service needs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the EMSTF is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements

is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of
the EMSTF's accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
Initial recognition

The EMSTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into
different categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The categories

are loans and receivables and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair
value, which normally equals to the transaction prices, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability.

The EMSTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the
date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Categorisation
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and which the EMSTF has no intention of trading.
This category includes debtors, amounts due from related
parties, bank deposits, cash and bank balances and placement
with the Exchange Fund.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note
2.34).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Categorisation (continued)
Loans and receivables (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the EMSTF estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the
financial asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any impairment evidence exists, a loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount of such
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through the statement of comprehensive
income.

Notional profits tax

The EMSTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap.112). However, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the Government) requires the EMSTF to pay to
the General Revenue an amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e. notional
profits tax) calculated on the basis of the provisions of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance. Notional profits tax expense for the year
comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Notional profits tax (continued)
(continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the EMSTF on 1 August 1996
were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the
Legislative Council Resolution for the setting up of the EMSTF. Property, plant
and equipment acquired since 1 August 1996 are capitalised at their costs of
acquisition.

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

- buildings; and
- plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles,
furniture and fixtures and other equipment.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 10-35 years
- Computer equipment 4-10 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
- Other equipment 7 years
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The land on which the EMSTF's buildings are situated is regarded as a non-
depreciating asset.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programmes.
Expenditure on development of computer software programmes is
capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible and the EMSTF has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete development. Intangible
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses (note 2.7).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives of 4 to 10 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify any indication of impairment. If there is an indication of
impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Inventories

Inventories are materials to be consumed in the rendering of services. They
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being
determined using the weighted average cost method. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

When inventories are consumed in the rendering of services, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

The employees of the EMSTF comprise civil servants and contract staff.
Salaries, staff gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued and
recognised as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions and
housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government, are charged as

expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, the pension liabilities of
the EMSTF are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by
the Government. For other staff, contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as

incurred.

Revenue recognition
Revenue

Revenue from contracts for provision of services at agreed service
level covering a specified period of time is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the period concerned. For other service contracts,
revenue is recognised based on services performed during the
reporting period as a percentage of the total services covered by the
contract.

Fees received but related to services to be performed in future periods
are recorded as deferred revenue.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the

statement of comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the EMSTF has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Related parties

The EMSTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the EMSTF
has entered into transactions with various related parties, including
government bureaux and departments, trading funds and financially
autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by the

Government, in the ordinary course of its business.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period. There have
been no changes to the accounting policies applied in the financial
statements for the years presented as a result of these developments.

The EMSTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the

current accounting period (note 24).
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=3 TURNOVER
2017 2016
HWENET TRRRG Electrical, mechanical and electronic services 5,501,282 5,093,199
BHHTIZRE Vehicle services 316,275 302,802
T2 MR RS Project and consultancy services 356,339 343,585
HAth Others 28,763 24,585
FEE ] Total 6,202,659 5,764,171
4 EERK OPERATING COSTS
2017 2016
BIEH Staff costs 2,437,913 2,343,943
IR Materials 474,272 450,255
Ao & Contractors cost 2,612,110 2,347,317
HekEEEH Rental and management charges 34,856 35,684
—RIBIERITEAS General operating and administration expenses 215,414 216,259
YT Mk 5 Depreciation and amortisation 32,975 35,181
EITEH Audit fees 1,489 1,501
FEY ] Total 5,809,029 5,430,140
Hibh A OTHER INCOME

2017 2016
RITE A F BULA Interest income from bank deposits 14,786 8,692

HNE RS FRAF S M A Interest income from placement with
the Exchange Fund 111,903 166,267
FEY ] Total 126,689 174,959
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Notes to the Financial Statements

6 BRAGSH
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NOTIONAL PROFITS TAX

(@) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive income

represents:
2017 2016
REAB K Current tax
REZEFEHABE Provision for notional profits tax for the year 76,281 81,463
BB Deferred tax
TR EREMEL Origination of temporary differences 7,095 1,039
BEHEH Notional profits tax 83,376 82,502

b) BEXHBEEHEMNZERHETED

(b)  The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable

IR tax rates is as follows:

2017 2016
HEFEHATZEF Profit before notional profits tax 520,319 508,990

REBNEBE165% Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%
(2016 : 16.5%) FTHE L E R 3K (2016: 16.5%) 85,853 83,983
— RN ER One-off tax reduction (20) (20)
FERBUA BT & Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (2,457) (1,461)
BEHELH Notional tax expense 83,376 82,502

7 BEEEERHE

BETEERREZNBE2ERE (TEEFE
WARFE S ) BRIABEEEEFHFEMS
WEDX BETEEREDE RH MR
EREAE -EHRETIREEESTLERM
BEIERE TEFEE B EDRE78% (2016
78%) BB 1F o

RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income
(excluding interest income and interest expenses) divided by average net fixed
assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The EMSTF is expected to meet a target rate of
return on fixed assets of 7.8% per year (2016: 7.8%) as determined by the Financial
Secretary.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

TR HRAK
BEY EREY Hif BEEHEE HitiEM #E
Furniture

Landand Computer Motor and Other

buildings equipment vehicles fixtures equipment Total
22N Cost
R2015F4 A1H At 1 April 2015 950,100 73,800 41,263 76,824 38732 1,180,719
0 Additions - 17,172 8,865 4,033 1012 31,082
HE /R Disposals - - (4,274) - (662) (4,936)
M2016%E3 A31H At 31 March 2016 950,100 90,972 45854 80,857 39082 1,206,865
R2016F4 A1H At 1 April 2016 950,100 90,972 45854 80,857 39082 1,206,865
0 Additions - 4321 12,437 12,785 22313 51,856
e /s Disposals - (243) (4,266) - - (4,509)
M2017%3H31H At 31 March 2017 950,100 95,050 54,025 93,642 61,395 1,254,212
ZiiTE Accumulated depreciation
R2015F4A1H At 1 April 2015 200,282 49,734 33,291 53412 22,247 358,966
FEEA Charge for the year 7,841 8,669 2,893 6,201 4,201 29,805
& /8 o Written back on disposals - - 4,274) - (662) (4.936)
M2016%E3 A31H At 31 March 2016 208,123 58403 31,910 59613 25,786 383,835
B2016%4 A1H At 1 April 2016 208,123 58,403 31,910 59613 25,786 383,835
FEEA Charge for the year 7,798 8981 5358 6,171 3,601 31,909
I /5 Written back on disposals - (243) (4,164) - - 4,407)
2017538318 At 31 March 2017 215,921 67,141 33,104 65,784 29,387 411,337
IREFRE Net book value
R2017F3A31H At 31 March 2017 734,179 27,909 20,921 27,858 32,008 842,875
M2016%E3 A31H At 31 March 2016 741,977 32,569 13,944 21,244 13,296 823,030

B %5 SR R BT =E
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BILEE INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BB R R
RAGHBEAE
Computer software licences
and system development costs
2017 2016
R A Cost
REY) At beginning of year 49,104 48,224
AN Additions 14,289 880
RER Atend of year 63,393 49,104
-G £ Accumulated amortisation
REY) At beginning of year 47,979 42,603
FEEBER Charge for the year 1,066 5376
RE Atend of year 49,045 47,979
IR EFE Net book value
RER At end of year 14,348 1,125
HMEEEFR PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE FUND

INEESTFREBRBIREARL30EB L2016
EAT) BEHERACFEARBRE KR
BY B9 ) B.6.206 18 78 72 (2016 = 5050 BB L) ©
K& FRARNF (BFHAR) - BHRTaE
REASE °

INEESTFRAERSF 1 ABENEE X
AE ZEEREINEESKREASBECTFN
FHFEERERR  I3FHIEESEFH
(2016% 1 A1 HRR3FHEFES) EBE—
FEMFHFENRZ  MERERSE - TR
#0% ° 2017 FEEERBETF28% ' 20165F &
FF33% e

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund comprised principal sums of
HK$3,000 million (2016: HK$3,000 million) and interest paid but not yet withdrawn
at the end of the reporting period of HK$620.6 million (2016: HK$505.0 million). The
term of the placement is six years from the dates of placement, during which the

principal sums cannot be withdrawn.

Interest is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is the average
annual investment return of the Exchange Fund'’s Investment Portfolio for the past
six years or the average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes (three-year
Government Bonds with effect from 1 January 2016) for the past year subject to a
minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed

at 2.8% per annum for the year 2017 and 3.3% per annum for the year 2016.
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11 EBRIERR AR DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS 15 ELEHR K DEFERRED TAX
2017 2016 UTAEFBKRIRAERNELEHRZNEE  Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial position
BRI D AR EFEFRNNEE and the movements during the year are as follows:
JE IR 3R Debtors 11 584
Fa TR R Prepayments 387 650 BRAEBINE
SNEE S IFRIEET R B Accrued interest from placement with BN Hith
the Exchange Fund 24,997 28,758 HERHE TRHHZR At
SRITIF RIERT T B Accrued interest from bank deposits 2,845 1,029 Depreciation
allowances in
W Total 28,240 31,021 excess of
the related
depreciation Other
and temporary
12 %:F %Tﬁ CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS amortisation differences Total
2017 2016
20154 B 1 B&% Balance at 1 April 2015 15,545 (4,384) 11,161
‘ REmRaEERNk/ (ER) Charged/(Credited) to staternent of
HRAE AT WE MR & Deposits received from related parties 1,356,093 941,742 J o
) N comprehensive income 1,581 (542) 1,039
REMEFWENRT £ Deposits received from other customers = 2
2016453 A31 AR Balance at 31 March 2016 17,126 (4,926) 12,200
E Total 1,356,093 941,744
20164 B 1 B &% Balance at 1 April 2016 17,126 (4,926) 12,200
REEREEZNR Charged to statement of
13 EEEFBRE PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS comprehensive income 5265 1830 7,095
b RENERERERBMEESMIZHEAMRE  This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and obligations 20173 A 31 B &k Balance at 31 March 2017 22,391 (3,096) 19,295
BTITEBREAHNREARMESEMEETAE (S on contract end gratuities payable to contract staff for services rendered up to the
RHIFE2.10) © end of the reporting period (also see note 2.10).
16 EEEEEXR TRADING FUND CAPITAL
14 EFZEWA DEFERRED REVENUE UL ABRATEHE TIRLELCHRE - This represents the Government's investment in the EMSTF.

HEHARRERS - EERERMEMENER - This represents contract fees received in advance for which services have not yet
been rendered.

2017 2016 17 REEF RETAINED EARNINGS

2017 2016

B A T WEMTESE L EF Contract fees received in advance from
HEMEPWBMEMENER C retlatetdfpart‘es ived in ad f oot 826650 FEEH Balance at beginning of year 2,724,487 2,511,243
e H BHAEHNE ont;ac eets received in advance from e . e e s ’
oo ' ' FELZHE W Total comprehensive income for the year 436,943 426,488
HE Total 1,183,962 833,900 REE Proposed dividend (239,172) (213,244)

ota 7 y )

FHRiEER Balance at end of year 2,915,858 2,724,487
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PROPOSED DIVIDEND

The proposed dividend to the Government is based on the total comprehensive
income for the year and the dividend payout ratio of 50% (2016: 50%) stated in the
annual business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and the

Treasury, plus an additional amount of HK$20.7 million (2016: Nil).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017 2016

e RIRITHH Cash and bank balances 26,370 5435

RITIER Bank deposits 3,200,000 2,260,000

/NE Sub-total 3,226,370 2,265,435
B RAE AR R A 3 8 A eV iR TIE K Less: Bank deposits with original maturity

over three months 2,530,000 1,100,000

ReRERRE Cash and cash equivalents 696,370 1,165,435

20 FRIE

(a) BEKIE
F2017F3A31H MEITREEES
KRBT B RE B BB E RN AE

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments

At 31 March 2017, the EMSTF had capital commitments, so far as not

provided for in the financial statements, as follows:

U
2017 2016
EHEREL Authorised and contracted for 57,835 31,053
EHENEREL Authorised but not yet contracted for 68,116 71618
BE Total 125,951 102,671

(b) EEIHHIKIE
E2017F 3831 BESATEBENL
R EEYLBRNBERBEINNR
KEMESEES

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease payments under the non-

cancellable operating leases for land and buildings were payable as follows:

2017 2016
THB1F Not later than one year 8,152 7,757
BB 1 FETHBESF Later than one year but not later than five years 6,356 14,506
B Total 14,508 22,263

B %5 SR R BT =E

Notes to the Financial Statements

21

22

23

HBEEE

M2017F3A31 A HETREEEZSH R
TRAAETEEZEFETMN2061 852016 :
2031 BATL) BHREBEERZBITIRHEAEN
BERERE BUREFAKEIREEES
HEEEAL -

BEEEATHRS

BT EMBHRERPSITRENRZIN - EERF
EAEEEATHETNEERS  AIEKEN
T

@ MEAEATREMOREEERKERET
TiRAR% - & T2 AR5 AN T12 K BA R
AR7S o ELARFS RN A LR R61.7018
BT (2016 1 57 22EB L) c ELBWEM
AMIFEI[ZEERE] A -

() BESEATRENREESE A
5 RRITHRRER - ELREALE
596708 7T (2016 1 9990 & B TT) ° &
SEOMAMEA4EIERA] A -

© RNBEEATBEANBETEEREEET
FENEE - ELEEMBANKALI2508
77T (2016 820 8B TT) °

MEEATREORE - B AREIKEE
B - MArEALRENRY - BRI
BREFLF - BARRAANNERKE -
7 B LAY [B] 2 R R AN O T SR U B

B ERER

23.1 REBFE
EIRLELSERLBBRENS
MTE  BECHERMINEESFR -
REREIRELCEESOBE  FTAKR
B T AMIKELERA -

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2017, the EMSTF had provided a bank with counter-indemnity in
respect of performance bonds for HK$20.61 million (2016: HK$20.31 million) issued
by the bank in favour of certain clients who are related parties of the EMSTF.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other material

related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

Services provided to related parties included electrical, mechanical and
electronic services; vehicle services; and project and consultancy services.
The total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$6,170 million
(2016: HKS5,722 million). This amount was included in turnover under note 3.

Services  received from related parties included  maintenance,
accommodation, central administration and auditing. The total cost incurred
on these services amounted to HK$96.7 million (2016: HK$99.9 million). This

amount was included in operating costs under note 4.

Acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out projects
and motor vehicles. The total cost of these assets amounted to HK$12.5
million (2016: HK$8.2 million).

Services provided to related parties were priced on a cost-plus basis. Services

received from related parties were charged at the rates payable by the general

public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost recovery

basis for services which were available only to related parties.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Investment policy

Surplus cash is invested in financial instruments including fixed deposits and
placement with the Exchange Fund. It is the EMSTF's policy that all
investments in financial instruments should be principal-protected.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The EMSTF's credit risk is primarily attributable to debtors, bank deposits and
placement with the Exchange Fund.

Debtors include mainly accrued interest and the associated credit risk is
minimal. To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed
banks in Hong Kong. For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit
risk is considered to be low.

The maximum exposure of the financial assets of the EMSTF to credit risk is
equal to their carrying values.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The EMSTF employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by
forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital
of the EMSTF to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market
interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk and

cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since
all of the EMSTF's bank deposits bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values
will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they are all stated at
amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect their carrying

amounts and the EMSTF's profit and reserves.

B %5 SR R BT =E

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 HMKEBRERE(E)

234

23.5

23.6

23.7

FIERE (&)
ReREFEXRRKES T EMNRKIR
e RS EEBMmEEHRER o
BETRZEESEAMYEANES
mMENXRRE  AAERSENEIZ:H
TEAHIZEZESRTIAE -

¥R
E¥ERESRITANDTFERARED
RenEeREXEFHTMKBNRME

BETREEEDLEERANEERER -
ARHEERTARBAROZANET AR

fif °

H i B4 %5 B B
BETREEEACANTF—ABETH
HMNEESTFRE X (MIsE10) MEEMZA
mMESrmER - R2017F38318 &
2016 % 2017 F B B K # 50/ 4 50
fEE 25 (2016 : SOEAEZ) MEMEAET
B A FEANRGEEBE M RS
15108 %78 (2016 : 1,460 BB TT) °

AFE
EREMSERSNER T AN FESE
RERERERADNTISREETE - 1
BREREMHME - BIARESE MR
B ENRE RERB T RBIERT &
HRFHE -

MrELBTAGUEE RN FERFHM
ETROBRIIREARNEKA

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
EMSTF is not exposed to material cash flow interest rate risk because it has
no major financial instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The EMSTF does not have significant exposure to currency risk as
substantially all of its financial instruments are denominated in Hong Kong

dollars.

Other financial risk

The EMSTF is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest
rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every
January (note 10). It was estimated that, as at 31 March 2017, a 50 basis point
(2016: 50 basis point) increase/decrease in the interest rates for 2016 and
2017, with all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the
profit for the year and reserves by HK$15.1 million (2016: HK$14.6 million).

Fair values

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. In the absence of
such quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using present value or
other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market conditions existing
at the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at

amounts equal to or not materially different from their fair values.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and which have not been early adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to
the EMSTF:

EUTE#HRz2#
MM E BREXN
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
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BB REERF 155
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BRUBREENE 1658 [HE
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HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 2018 1 A1 H
1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 20181 A1 H
1 January 2018

HKFRS 16, Leases 20191 H1H
1 January 2019

The EMSTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial adoption. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the financial statements.
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